FALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 24, 2004
1:44 p. m
TAPE(S) 04-14&15

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Lyda Green, Vice Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Bettye Davis

Senat or G et chen CGuess

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers were present.

COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 364

"An Act relating to liability for expenses of placenent in
certain nmental health facilities; relating to the nental health
treatment assistance program and providing for an effective
date."

HEARD AND HELD

CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 25(JUD)

"An Act relating to health care decisions, including do not
resuscitate orders, anat om cal gifts, and nental heal t h
treatment decisions, and to powers of attorney relating to
health care, including anatomcal gifts and nental health

treatment decisions; and providing for an effective date."
HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 364

SHORT TITLE: LIMT STATE AID FOR MENTAL HEALTH CARE
SPONSCR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 08/ 04 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
03/ 08/ 04 (S) HES, FIN

03/ 19/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 19/ 04 (S -- Meeting Canceled --

SENATE HES COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2004



03/ 22/ 04
03/ 22/ 04
03/ 22/ 04
03/ 24/ 04

BILL: HB 25

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

SHORT TI TLE: HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 21/ 03
01/21/03
01/ 21/ 03
02/ 13/ 03
02/ 13/ 03
02/ 13/ 03
02/ 27/ 03
02/ 27/ 03
02/ 27/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/ 06/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/ 10/ 03
03/ 26/ 03
03/ 26/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
03/ 28/ 03
03/31/03
03/31/03
03/31/03
04/ 07/ 03
04/ 07/ 03
04/ 07/ 03
05/ 06/ 03
05/ 06/ 03
05/ 07/ 03
05/ 07/ 03
05/ 16/ 03
05/ 16/ 03
05/ 16/ 03
03/ 08/ 04
03/ 08/ 04
03/ 08/ 04
03/ 24/ 04

SENATE HES COW TTEE

LLLLNNITIIIIIITIIIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZIZZEZES

(S)
(S)
(S)

REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH

PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD, FIN

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
Moved CSHB 25(HES) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( HES)

HES RPT CS(HES) NT 7DP

DP. GATTO WOLF, HEI NZE, SEATON,
Cl SSNA, KAPSNER, W LSON

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

-- Meeting Cancel ed --

JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120
Moved CSHB 25(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 5DP

DP: SAMJELS, HOLM GARA, 0OGG MCGU RE
FI N REFERRAL \WAI VED

TRANSM TTED TO (S)

VERSI ON:  CSHB 25(JUD)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
HES, JUD

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( HES)

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

-2- March 24, 2004



W TNESS REG STER

M. Bill Hogan, Director

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Department of Health & Social Services

PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 364

Ms. Stacie Kraly

Assi stant Attorney General

Human Services Section, Cvil Division

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 364

Ms. Karl een Jackson, Deputy Conm ssi oner
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)
PO Box 110601

Juneau, AK 99801-0601

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 364

Dr. Hopson

Al aska Psychiatric Institute

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 364

Dr. Verner Stillner

Bartl ett Regional Hospital

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Seriously questioned the nerit of SB 364

Shar on Lobaugh

NAM Juneau Representative

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 364

Harol d Stepp
Juneau, AK 99801
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 364

Ri chard Rai nery

Executive D rector

AK Mental Health Board

431 N. Franklin St. Suite 200
Juneau, AK 99801

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2004



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 364

Shawn Ander son

Pol ari s House

P. 0. Box 022056

Juneau, AK 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 364

Jeff Jesse

Executive D rector

AK Mental Health Trust Authority

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 364

Li nda Syl vester

Staff to Representative Bruce Wyhrauch

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 25 for the sponsor

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-14, SIDE A

CHAI R FRED DYSON called the Senate Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 1:44 p.m
Present at the call to order were Senators WI ken, Davis, Quess,

and Chair Dyson. Senator Geen arrived shortly thereafter.

SB 364-LIM T STATE AID FOR MENTAL HEALTH CARE

MR. Bl LL HOGAN, Di rector, Division of Behavioral Heal t h,
Department of Health & Social Services (DHSS), testified he was
answeri ng questions that arose in HES conmmttee neeting of March
22. He referred to the first question [“Questions on SB 364 from
3/22/04”] in commttee packet, which was:

1. Fiscal note — how to manage 24-hour notification,
contract with First Health? Wat happens if there is
a |l apse by the provider in the tinme to report?

He said the departnent’s intent is to work with providers to
indicate there has been a change, and to educate providers on

the new registration requirenents. The intent is not to
di sal | ow paynment because of not reporting within 24-hours; he
poi nted out departnental inplenentation would be reasonable.

Regarding eligibility, there is no <change, but rather a

SENATE HES COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2004



clarification. Wen the patient is admtted, the departnent
will be seeking additional information regarding nental status
pertaining to being a danger to self or others, and to confirm
that status as the stay is retrospectively reviewed. The cost
to the division is anticipated to cost approximtely $32,0000
annual ly, contracting with First Health to do these reviews.
There were potentially 275 reviews in the current fiscal year,
at $112 per review. This would also anticipate, in addition to
that initial review, reviews at the eighth day of adm ssion.
The di agnoses evaluation piece runs up to 7 days. The eighth
day is when treatnent begins so the reviews should be done on
the eighth day of admssion; that would be approximtely an
addi tional $7,000. The cost of doing the reviews woul d be about
$40, 000 annual |y, based on current vol une of adm ssions.

MR. HOGAN told nenbers that Dr. Hopson was avail able to address
t he second questi on.

SENATOR GRETCHEN GQUESS asked, “Do we have a 24-hour |ine now?”

MR. HOGAN replied First Health Services Corporation is available
24 hours, seven days a week for Medicaid reviews. If a client
or consuner calls any of our offices, there is an after-hours
energency, and if it is a mental health energency, that person
is referred to the local provider. There is no nechanism in
pl ace for departmental staff to take these calls 24 hours, seven
days a week.

MR. HOGAN continued with the third question:

3. Is there a liability issue if we order an
early discharge and soneone is harnmed due to that
early discharge?

He said the departnent is not seeking a prior authorization
process, but a retrospective review of the records with nore
detail about the individual’s nental status while in hospital

care. Additionally there wll be fiscal discussions after
di schar ge. The retrospective review versus prior authorization
process wll avoid nost liability concerns and is only a
refinement in detail over the current process. This is not

anticipated to be a problem he added.
MR. HOGAN continued with the next question:

4. What have other states one on this issue -
entitlement and perm ssive issue?

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2004



He deferred to the Departnent of Law to answer this question.

M5. STACIE KRALY, Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Human Services
Section, addressed the question of whether other states deal
wi th paynents for |ocal services as an entitlenment or otherw se.
She responded she has been waiting for a response from other
states. She noted that Alaska is different from nost other
states, and pointed out that in nost other states — although
they have local facilities and contract for |ocal services -
nost are dealt with on an evaluation and stabilization basis

and then immediately go to a state hospital. There is nore of a
centralized provision of services in other states. Al aska is
set up so that nmany local facilities provide evaluation and
stabilization, and then regional facilities such as Bartlett or

Fai rbanks, or APl provide treatnent services. Bearing in mnd
that Alaska is different in ternms of size and scope of services
is inportant. She said she was still gathering information to

answer this question, and it would be provided either through
the Chair or further testinony.

CHAI R DYSON referenced the entitlenent |anguage and asked if the
state or any other political subdivision nust provide services
even if they were broke or if it nmeant taking funds from other
gover nnent servi ces.

M5. KRALY replied this is the argunent that would be nade. In
the circunstance of a fiscal crises, where there was no noney to
be paid, there are issues. If it’s an entitlenment program the

government is obligated to nake that paynent.

CHAIR DYSON asked if political subdivisions have been sued
successfully for applying triage.

M5. KRALY said anecdotally, she is famliar with at |east one
lawsuit filed in Juneau resulting from the inability of the
recipient at Bartlett to pay for his cost of care. That
litigation was resolved prior to trial. Subsequently, the case
was not filed, but there were overtures from attorneys in town
dealing with both Bartlett and consuners, seeking reinbursenent
for paynments they were unable to recover from folks who didn’t
qualify for this program or the program wasn’t in place, or
didn't have third-party payor status. There is litigation on
this issue.

CHAIR DYSON said this wasn't exactly his question. He was
wondering if soneone was refused services, or given reduced

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2004



services because of financial limtations. He questioned whether
this had been litigated.

M5. KRALY said she was not famliar wth any cases that have
been brought, but it would be a conceivabl e cause of action.

CHAIR DYSON referred to fol ks receiving diagnostic services, and
asked i f nost were not self-payers.

MR. HOGAN confirnmed this program was designed for indigents,
bel ow 185 percent of poverty who do not have a third party
payor, including Medicaid.

CHAI R DYSON asked who pays for people who come — willingly or
unwi I lingly for diagnostic services.

MR. HOGAN reflected on his work in a nental health center, where
there was a sliding fee scale for all services provided. People
were expected to pay a little bit, he said.

CHAI R DYSON said if the departnment runs out of funds for this,
the question is, “Are they going to get the service needed, and
perhaps the presunption is there being attenpt to recover cost
from the patient and their assets, so the person wouldn’t be
deni ed the services.”

CHAI R DYSON asked what happens to people who need services if
the departnment runs out of noney and is commtted to not having
a suppl enental budget.

MR. HOGAN responded those individuals would have to go to APl if
i n-patient services were needed even though, ideally, the person
woul d be treated in his/her own comunity.

CHAI R DYSON said the default position is a nore expensive one.
MR. HOGAN responded the cost at APl is |ess expensive than
services provided at conmunity hospitals. He said this was

answered on the second page of the handout.

CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Kraly when she anticipated receiving an
answer to her questions.

MS5. KRALY told him she hoped to receive an answer on how ot her

states deal with the paynent issue by the end of this week or
t he begi nning of next week.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2004



CHAIR DYSON said another question is liability involving
sonebody bringing an action for not receiving services.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN clarified this wasn’t the original question
for nunber three, and asked what the question was that she was
gathering information on.

MS. KRALY reiterated that M. Hogan had answered question nunber
three, and she was | ooking into question nunber four.

SENATOR GREEN asked if the question was, “How many other states
have this service as an entitlenent?”

CHAI R DYSON said he asked, “How have other states handled it?
[Do] lots of them have perm ssive |anguage that we are being
asked to nove towards? And, what’'s happened with them in terns
of cost and service to the client popul ation?”

SENATOR GREEN asked for clarification of “perm ssive | anguage.”

CHAIR DYSON replied it's what's in the bill. It takes out the
entitlement | anguage.

CHAI R DYSON asked about the conpanion bill

MR HOGAN told him HB 585 would be heard in House HES on
Thursday afternoon at 3:00 p.m

CHAI R DYSON asked to be kept infornmed of its progress because of
the timng in the legislative session.

MR. HOGAN referred to the next question:

5. Wwants to know what we will do if we run out of
appropriated funds. [ The hand out version continues
Wit h: W won’t conme back on a supplenental ? Qur

response of this language in other legislation is that
it is pretty much standard |anguage in |egislation on
benefits (i.e. Senior Care)]

He indicated on Mnday the comm ssioner does not intend to ask
for a supplenental. He deferred to M. Jackson for further
expl anati on.

M5. KARLEEN JACKSON, Deputy Comm ssioner, DHSS, reiterated that

the objective is for no supplenental. They plan to handle the
departnmental budget as one unit and do what happened this year

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2004



wth a net zero supplenental wthin the departnment itself,
shifting funding as needed. If that is inpossible, it’'s not
i nconcei vabl e that a supplemental would be necessary, but that’s
not the goal.

CHAIR DYSON asked if, by inference, the goal includes that
peopl e needi ng services wouldn't be turned away.

M5. JACKSOON confirmed the goal is to provide for the health and
wel | being of all Al askans.

CHAIR DYSON commented SB 364 tightens up on the controls and
puts sideboards on it to get better control of costs, but not to
deny servi ces.

MS. JACKSON concurr ed.

SENATOR QUESS asked, if the projection is wong. |Is the
adm nistration’s intent to take those funds out of other places
in the budget, or to deny paynent to providers, or to have that
person end up at API?

M5. JACKSON responded the intent is, if there are areas within
the DHSS budget to nove funds from one unit to another, that
woul d be done. The intention is to ensure people have services
they need, and to ensure there are cost containnment boundaries

as nmuch as possible. There are all sorts of “what if”
scenarios, but wuntil the situations are dealt wth, specific
responses aren’'t avail able. She reiterated the intent is to
provide for the health and well being of people, while

cont ai ni ng cost.

SENATOR GUESS asked, “The intent is not to refuse paynent to a
provi der because there’'s not enough noney in that BRU to pay for
t he services?”

M5. JACKSON said the whole purpose in doing this was to ensure
there is sufficient resource to neet the need in the best
possi ble way. The intent is not to harm providers or consumers.

SENATOR GUESS questions, “The intent is not to deny paynents to
providers if you run out of noney?”

MS. JACKSON confirnmed that is correct.

MR. HOGAN conti nued on page 2, question nunber six:

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2004



6. Do we need to note in the bill that a nedical
pr of essi onal representing DHSS wll be the one
deciding with the provider?

He said “deciding” refers to whether or not the person should
continue to stay within the facility. He said, as wth previous

questions, these will be retrospective reviews. There is a 24-
hour review, and a review on the eighth day. If there is a
decision the person needs to |leave the facility on that eighth
day, the intent is to include the nedical director at API, in

the decision, and particularly in the appeal process if there is
a determnation that the hospital feels the person should stay.

SENATOR GUESS asked if the admnistration’s intent is to put
forth an anendnent clarifying this, “although it’s the intent of
this admnistration to ensure that that intent and that plan is
carried out in the future.”

MR. HOGAN said he believes there is a willingness to do that.

SENATOR GREEN wondered if there was any conflict with interest,
wi th the naned person.

MR. HOGAN replied a conflict was not antici pated.

SENATOR CREEN asked if, as a possible receiving facility, “Is
t here enough of a wall, or a third person?”

MR HOGAN said he understood there is no financial benefit to
the nmedical director at API, based on the nunber of adm ssions,
or people comng into the facility.

SENATOR CGREEN noted this would be the facility of default, and
she wanted to be sure the program woul d be designed so that it’s
a clean process and that no one could say, “OF course you wanted
the patient, etc.” She said it wouldn't take long for it to be
full, with this process in place, and wanted to be sure this
woul dn’t be m sinterpreted.

MR. HOGAN said the intent is to nanage API’s census as best as
possible, and a concern is there would be too many people
seeking adm ssion at APl rather than not enough. He did not
anticipate this being a problem He nentioned Dr. Hopson woul d
be avail able to answer questions about the eval uation process.

MR. HOGAN proceedi ng to question nunber seven:

SENATE HES COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2004



7. How do <costs conpare between APl and DET/S
[ di agnosis, evaluation, treatnent and stabilization]
facilities?

He referred to the hand out, listing the APl daily rate as about
$670. The daily rates for the DET facilities range from about
$1,640 per day at Bartlett to as high as over $2,000 per day at
M . Edgecunbe and Bet hel .

2:12 p.m
SENATOR GUESS asked about conparing DET, DES, and APl rates.

MR. HOGAN explained the API daily rate was the rate for all
patients, regardless of length of stay. If soneone is there for
as little as 24 hours, that is factored in with individuals who
have been there for several years.

CHAI R DYSON thought the heart of the question was whether they
were there for diagnostic work.

SENATOR GUESS said she presumed APl does nore than DET and DES.
G ven that, the local comunity’s cost for DET and DES shoul d be
conpared to API’s cost. She was interested in conparing simlar
services, or “apples to apples.”

MR. HOGAN said they could cone up with those figures, that is,
| ooki ng at the same kinds of services at different facilities.

SENATOR GREEN asked about a third alternative. She asked what a
“community service would | ook Iike?”

MR. HOGAN responded the services provided in various hospitals
are in patient services, provided in the various comunities.
The term “community based service” connotes out of hospital,
for him that is, not in the hospital.

SENATOR GREEN asked where out-of-hospital providers comes in for
sonmeone who doesn’t need to be at API, and depending on the
di agnoses and stabilization diagnoses is, “Wat is the next
| owest piece that cones after this? Because certainly these
aren’t the only choices.”

MR. HOGAN replied there is an array of services available in a

nunber of different comunities. The next step down from
hospitalization wuld be what wused to be called partial
hospitalization, or day treatnent. It’s possible for sonebody

SENATE HES COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2004



to participate three to four hours per day, obtaining individual
or group therapy or skills developnment, wusually three or four

days per week. That would be the next intensive array of
servi ces. If a person didn't need those, there mght be the
nore traditional hour of counseling. He said he could provide

the cost for that next array of services.
SENATOR CGREEN asked if this was germane to this conversation.

MR. HOGAN said he wasn't sure, as this was not a 24-hour per
day, seven day per week service. The ideal is for the person to
be stabilized as quickly as possible, and then return to the
community with an array of behavioral health services.

SENATOR GREEN said the focus here was on the period of tine
before they' re stabilized.

MR. HOGAN confirmed the service refers to the period of tine
that they’'re being stabilized, that 1is, to stabilize the
individual so he/she can return to his/her own comunity,
ideally with his/her owmn famly.

MR. HOGAN t hen addressed the eighth question:

8. Do we know what the rate reduction mght be, per
Section 7 of the bill?

He said as indicated on Mnday, the departnent wll work out
what that mght look |ike, via regulation. There is also the
possibility of running out of funds, although they would go to
great lengths to ensure the basics of this service were still in
pl ace, even if it mnmeant |ooking at other prograns within the
depart nment.

SENATOR GUESS asked if there was a contradiction wth the
statenent of “we don’'t plan to refuse paynent” and the
admnistration say, “no, it is not our intent to deal wth
shortfalls in that way” and having this part of Section 7 which
says, “yes, we mght reduce paynents to providers if there is a

shortfall.” She said she wanted clarification of t he
adm nistration’s intent if there is a shortfall. Also, it seens
the intent of SB 364, regardless of the admnistration, is to
refuse paynent — partial or full — to a provider.

MR. HOGAN responded the cost for providing DET services in a
hospital would be sonewhat Iless than the cost to provide
services in an intensive care unit, or a nedical surgical unit.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2004



The Medicaid daily rate for services in a DET unit includes
costs from those other beds. This is the hospital daily rate.
The departnent has discussed |ooking at nore closely determ ning
what it actually costs to provide the service in the DET unit
itself, which he thinks would be lower than an intensive care or
a nedical surgical bed. That would be the nethodol ogy they
would like to nove toward, to establish a lower rate for that
particul ar service provision.

SENATOR GUESS said this doesn’t go to whether a negotiated rate
is DET or not and that you could even reduce the negotiated DET
if funds were short. Gven that you can't refuse a patient, a
shortfall is passed on to everyone el se paying at that hospital.
The intent is good, but since statues are around for |ong
periods of tinme, she questioned why the clause in Section 7 is
there if that isn't the intent of the adm nistration

MR. HOGAN responded the clause is in the bill because the
original intent was to nmnage cost better, and to ensure the
person still gets the necessary service. They would like the

authority to be able to negotiate a rate different than the
Medicaid rate, and this would do that, he said. He said he
would defer to the attorney general’s office for advice
regardi ng whether it was necessary to include that clause.

SENATOR GQUESS asked if the purpose of Section 7 is to allow the
departnment the authority to negotiate a different rate.

MR. HOGAN said it does give that authority, based on [indisc.]
shortfall.

SENATOR QUESS said she doesn’'t read it as a negotiation, but as
a percentage reduction, given the shortfall. So, t he
flexibility wouldn’t be there to say, “maybe Bartlett does cost
| ess but Fairbanks costs nore, and we need to address these DET
rates.”

CHAIR DYSON declared, “That |I|ine of reasoning raises ny
hackl es,” and acknow edged he is sonmewhat familiar wth cost
shifting that goes on in nedical facilities. Al aska needs to be
careful that public dollars are not being used to pay for a
service, and the hospital is shifting cost from other services
and clients, onto the bills that are being paid for by public

dol | ars. He said he is very interested in what the departnent
is doing to ensure hospitals aren’t doing this. He questi oned
how to anmend the bill to nake sure the negotiated rate is

SENATE HES COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2004



avai l able for those who are self-payers, thereby allotting them
t he sane di scount.

MR. HOGAN addressed the | ast question:

9. Explanation for cost increases over the |[ast
several years.

He reported the hospital cost increased has 100 percent between
FY 01 and FY 03. A little over 25 percent of that increase is
due to the average daily Medicaid rate going up between FY 01
and FY 03. The other increase is in the total nunber of bed
days, agai n about a 25 percent increase.

CHAIR DYSON asked Dr. Hopson if the departnent’s tine
constraints were adequate to stabilize a patient to the point of
doing an accurate evaluation of the diagnoses. He asked what
the plan is when a patient is admtted.

DR. HOPSON from Al aska Psychiatric Institute testified via
tel econference. He said this wuld be different for every
patient and every treatnent or evaluation center, and this would
affect the length of stay and length of treatnent. Vari ous
menbers of the team observe the patient, conplete a psychiatric
evaluation, a past history, social history, substance abuse
hi story, observe them in response to the mlieu to see if the
environment has a positive effect. Determne if nedications are
required, and if so, to observe the response to the nedication
which could take 24, 48, or 72 hours. The first three days are
the nost critical in determ ning whether soneone will require a
| ength of stay |onger than seven days.

CHAI R DYSON asked if sone of the patients are there because they
didn't take prescribed nedications and if they get back on
medi cation they usually stabilize in 24 to 72 hours.

Tape 04-14, SIDE B

DR HOPSON replied many patients are presenting for the first
time so there mght be no history to reflect on so stabilization
m ght take longer. This nmeans there wouldn't be a nedication
history and other netabolic problenms that are causing the
psychiatric presentation would have to be identified. These
people mght end up staying l|longer than those that have been
t here before.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2004



Chronic patients are at the other end of the spectrum and have a
wel | established pattern. They mght be resistant to treatnent,
they mght be off their medication, or their medication m ght
not be working any |onger. These patients require very creative
treatment and may take | onger to stabilize.

The short answer is that length of stay is specific to the
presentation. The retrospective review that's being discussed
would enable them to look at specific cases and observe
responses and then determ ne appropri at eness.

CHAIR DYSON restated that patients with a history mght be
stabilized nore quickly. If a schizophrenic or bi-polar patient
came in and nedication was indicated, he questioned whether they
could be stabilized in two or three days.

DR. HOPSON said they frequently take |onger than that. A typi cal
scenario for three to four day stabilization would be soneone
who had sonething happen in their lives to cause them to becone
despondent or sui ci dal . They would be hospitalized for
evaluation and stabilization. They would be provided wth
support opportunities in the comunity and they would receive
medi cation. Wthin 72 hours they are generally able to | eave the
hospital. That population represents a nunber of the patients
that are under discussion, but there are a large nunber that
fall outside that category.

CHAIR DYSON said with that information in mind, are the tine
limts for the diagnostic phase that the departnent is talking
about generally sufficient?

DR. HOPSON replied he thinks so.

CHAI R DYSON asked if this legislation provides ways for patients
to spend nore time in the stabilization and diagnostic phase if
that's what they require.

DR. HOPSON replied, "Absolutely.” It's comon in the mnaged
care environnent in other states, but it's new in Alaska. In the
managed care environnent in the Lower 48, physicians are nost
accustomed to working with managed care agencies and providers
to assure that patients receive the appropriate |evel of care.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS noted his qualification to speak to the
bill and asked what he thought about it.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -15- March 24, 2004



DR. HOPSON replied the bill does provide for care for Al askans
and al so sets a precedence to begin to manage the care.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if he was saying that hospitals would have
no problemw th the | anguage in the bill

DR. HOPSON said hospitals mght have sone concerns, but "if the
reviews are done in a collaborative manner with the physicians,
| think the overall intent is to provide inproved quality of
care in the least restrictive setting possible. | think an
i ndi vidual needs to stay in the hospital only as long as they
really need to stay in the hospital. Unfortunately, in sone
comunities wthout adequate community resources, that m ght
affect the new patient length of stay. This puts forth a sort of
process to kind of nonitor that."

SENATOR DAVI S asked for his comments on Section 7 that talks
about working out a percentage paynent if there isn't sufficient
noney to pay for the services provided.

DR. HOPSON replied this is new to Alaska, but it's not new in
t he scope of nedicine.

SENATOR DAVIS said it's been suggested that he would be doing
eval uati ons and she wondered whether he felt he could do that
wi t hout hel p.

DR. HOPSON admitted that it "could very quickly snowball into
quite a process.” He noted that he did previously state that as
nmedi cal director for the division, he thought he would eval uate
sone of the retrospective reviews or consult with physicians in
sone cases. However, at this point, he couldn't tell how |arge
that responsibility m ght be.

CHAI R DYSON asked Verner Stillner to cone forward.

VERNER STILLNER testified on behalf of Bartlett Regiona
Hospital. He stated the follow ng:

| think this Senate Bill has trenmendous inplications
on the treatnment of the involuntarily nentally ill
i ndividuals of Alaska and therefore I would like to

put a couple of points forward to you.
First of all, there are seven facilities in the state

that are diagnostic evaluation facilities and there
are two outside of Anchorage that are diagnostic and

SENATE HES COW TTEE -16- March 24, 2004



evaluation facilities. Wwen vyou are a diagnostic
facility, you can take soneone for 72 hours
involuntarily and then the disposition is either to
send to another hospital or if you are diagnostic,
evaluation and treatnent facility, then you are able
to treat the individual up to 30 days. And the State
pays for this at the present tine. The State
designates the hospital and the hospital provides the
treatnent and nost of the tine - | can tell you I'm a
Bartlett enployee, |I'm a psychiatrist and a nenber of
the Al aska Psychiatric Association - their legislative
representative - and so therefore |I |look at this from
several standpoints here. Additionally, | used to have
M. Hogan's job back in the Hanmmond Administration in
"79 to '82. At that point we were having the history
of still sending all our nentally ill from Al aska to
Mor ni ngsi de outside of Portland Oregon. There was no
facility in Alaska. Then the APl cane into being and
we thought, well look, this is not a very good
regi onal approach. Why not bring treatnent closer to
the patient's community of origin or the client's
comunity of origin. And we said, 'Let's get the
hospitals to do it." And the hospitals said, 'Nothing
doing. Unless we are reinbursed for this service, we
will not provide this diagnhostic evaluation or
treatnment facility.'

We have evolved now where we have two treatnent

facilities - di agnostic eval uation treat ment
facilities - Fairbanks Menorial and Bartlett - and we
have seven evaluation facilities. | think this piece

of legislation would distort and perhaps dismantle
this regional approach to treatnent because the way |
read this bill, when the noney runs out - 'Good
intentions,' as ny Spanish teacher used to tell ne,
"pave the road to Hell.’

The legislation has a trenmendous cutback in the
funding - $400,000 in its first year - which neans
there are going to be fewer services provided. So that
the hospitals that are currently doing this - outside
of the API - are going to lose their notivation for
the treatnent or the evaluation and treatnent
facility. | think that is an unfortunate thing for the
mentally ill of Al aska because they are first of all
involuntarily adm tted.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -17- March 24, 2004



DR. STILLNER related an anecdotal exanple to show that the
systemis currently doing well. Patients are treated locally in
outpatient clinics and they are able to remain close to their
famlies and honmes. SB 364, he said, has the potential to undo
t hi s good approach.

The APl is slated for downsizing in 2005 so when there is no
capacity there, the nmentally ill will go to corrections. "Wen a
judge can't find any place to put them then Lenon Creek
[ Correctional Center] beconmes an option for that individual and
then the Division of Corrections will end up paying for them
but not treating them™

DR, STILLNER said the intentions are good here, but when you
take away an individuals freedom by involuntarily hospitalizing
them and then you nmeke them pay for it, you' re on soft ground
and thin ice legally and he would |like to hear the attorney
general give an opinion on this.

In conclusion he said, "The system of designation, evaluation
and treatnment facilities has allowed the treatnent to becone
closer to the conmunity of origin for individuals and | fear
that this legislation with its attenpt to cut the costs of
regional hospitalizations is going to shunt individuals to the
APl , and when the APl is full, to corrections. And therefore, I
woul d ask you to seriously consider the nerits of this piece of
| egi sl ation.”

SENATOR GREEN acknow edged she agrees wth sone of his
statenents, but she wasn't sure about all of them She asked
whet her he opposes any kind of involuntary hospitalization.

DR STILLNER assured her he is very much in favor of it because

mentally ill individuals don't always realize that they're ill
He enphasized that it's a wonderful vehicle for getting those
that need it into treatnent. It's good for the commnity, the

famly and the individual.
SENATOR CGREEN stated that it doesn't necessarily follow that
sonmeone who is commtted involuntarily is unable to pay.

DR. STILLNER replied your insurance conpany is billed first and
the State is the | ast resort paynent.

SENATOR GREEN suggested it's not wong to try to get paynent
from patients, but she's getting the inpression that he's saying

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 24, 2004



it's wong to try to get paynent from individuals who are
involuntarily conmtted and she doesn't agree with that.

DR STILLNER advised her that many of the individuals that are
commtted for a 72 hour hold are indigent. If the hospital isn't
reinbursed for the stay then they'll be sent to Anchorage if the
transport services are avail abl e.

SENATOR GREEN questi oned whet her these individuals would be sent
to a correctional facility.

DR, STILLNER asked her where a judge would send an individual
for an eval uation.

SENATOR CGREEN asked whet her he was tal ki ng about incarceration.

DR STILLNER said it's not incarceration, there's a holding area
at Lenon Creek and that's been used recently.

SENATOR GREEN stated that's not like going to prison. She
enphasi zed she doesn't want there to be the inplication that
soneone that can't pay would go to a correctional facility.

DR. STILLNER assured her there is no intention to sent nentally
ill individuals to a correctional facility, but that's where the
mentally ill would ultimately land if there were no safety net
treatment spectrum of services. "That's what increasingly is
happening and unfortunately [it's] throughout the nation, not
just Alaska, the correctional system is becomng the new
asylum™

CHAI R DYSON asked himto return on Monday when the bill would be
heard again. He called Sharron Lobaugh.

SHARRON LOBAUGH, NAM Juneau representative, said she is a

founder of National Alliance of the Mentally IlIl (NAM) and has
been working in this area for about 30 years because her son
becane ill at age 15. He is now 41 and noved into his own hone

just last year. He's had a seriously difficult tinme and spent
three years at API. She said she doesn't want anyone else to
have to do that, which is why she has been to the Legislature
many tinmes over nany years. She said she's been working to get
designation and evaluation and treatnent facilities close to
people's honmes and to establish conmmunity support progranms so
mentally ill people don't have to end up in APl or on the
street.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -19- March 24, 2004



It's been a long struggle to get to the state of the art that's
avai l abl e now and she and others in the field don't want to see
it regress. SB 364 tends to regress, she said.

She pointed out that there is the issue of parity here because
there isn't good insurance for the nentally ill. This neans that
if a famly doesn't have insurance that covers nental illness
and if they're in the over 185 percent of poverty category, then
they'd have go into poverty to pay for their children's health
care. "Mental illness is a no fault illness," she enphasized
and it's sonething that happens when individuals are on the cusp
of becom ng an adult. These individuals aren't able to go on and
beconme inconme producing adults and frequently they aren't able
to qualify for Medicare until they've applied tw or three
times.

There's no provision for appeal in this process and frequently

it does beconme a correctional issue. The nentally ill individua
may commt an infraction and if there is no other place to go,
they go to jail. "This is a big step backward and I would Iike
you to put this bill on hold for a long long tine."

CHAIR DYSON asked if it's her position that State resources
shoul d be used to take care of the nentally ill rather than have
famlies use up their resources to take care of a fam |y nmenber.

M5. LOBAUGH said in this kind of case she would have to say yes
because famlies can't get insurance to cover nental illness.
"I'f in the wsdom of the Legislature, you were able to get us a
parity bill so that you required insurance conpanies to cover
mental illness, then that mght be a different story." |nsurance
conpanies treat nental illness as though it isn't part of the
body, she said.

SENATOR GREEN asked whether any of the waivers provided
assi stance to her son.

M5. LOBAUGH said yes. Her son has both a developnenta
disability and a mnental illness and fortunately he has a
Medi caid waiver "That has kept him out of hospital as well as
hi s medi cations,” she said.

SENATOR CGREEN said that's what a waiver is designed for.

M5. LOBAUGH pointed out that the bill caps a doctor's ability to
prescribe state of the art nedication and that may affect her

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 24, 2004



son. He may |l ose the ability to have the best nedication and the
consequences could be horrific.

3: 00 pm

HAROLD STEPP stated he was speaking on behalf of the nentally
ill to say that the bill isn't very good. Under the bill,
respite would be good for just seven days and a Ilot of
medi cations don't work in that anmount of tinme so "you're in the
sane boat you were in before.” He urged nenbers to deal wth
t hi s probl em now.

Rl CHARD RAI NERY, executive director of AK Mental Health Board
(AMHB), said the board asked him to relay their position on SB
364. In general, the managenent tools are appropriate, he said,
and in sonme cases they're overdue. Utilization review is good
and is sonmething everyone is trying to nove toward as quickly as
possi ble. Oher than that, the AVHB has phil osophic differences
with the bill

SB 364 allows nental health treatnent to be a discretionary
service on the part of the State and that isn't in keeping with
the principles of AS 47.30.655, which says that services wll be
available in the least restrictive venue possible. It also says
that services will be as close as possible to the community of
origin of an individual. Those same principles are mrrored in
the plan for the nental health systemcreated by the board.

SENATOR CGREEN asked for the statute again.

MR. RAINERY told her it's AS 47.30.655 and said the board
believes that nmaking this a discretionary service backs away
fromthose principles.

CHAIR DYSON asked if he was saying that noving away from
entitlement | anguage nakes it discretionary.

MR. RAINERY said yes, the State should pay for these services.
He continued to say that the board agrees with the governor that
the current environnent threatens certain essential services.
This is why the board is on record wth the Legislature
supporting a fiscal plan that provides adequate resources to
protect the services that are essential to vul nerable Al askans.

The points that nmake them question the bill include:

SENATE HES COW TTEE -21- March 24, 2004



1. They don't have any idea how many individuals would be
denied services if the bill beconmes |aw They don't know,
but they surmise that if people aren't served locally,
they' Il be served at API.

3. APl is being downsized and a key to that is that there are
appropriate and adequate services across the state.

4. There are elenents of DET that aren't yet in place and DET
in Anchorage is part of the downsizing plan. Could that
happen under this bill?

5. OGher areas of the state wuld Ilike to provide DET
services. Could that happen with this bill?

6. The provision of DET is an alternative to APl and it was a
consensus deci sion by people interested in nental health in
Al aska. The board isn't opposed to changing previous
decisions, but with no clear vision of what the change
woul d bring they are hesitant.

7. The tinme that is spent in a DET facility averages about
five to six days. Under the downsize scenario at API, that
hospital would have to deal wth the npbst conplex
individuals that can't be handled at a local |evel. People
that just need hospitalization for five or six days
shoul dn't be sent to API.

SHAWN ANDERSON testified that he is from Polaris House. He is a
father of three and is bipolar. He got out of the hospital |ess
than 24 hours ago and still feels vulnerable. He delayed going
for help, at least partially, because he was worried about what
it would cost. The consequences of SB 364 are scary to him and
many others are likely to ook at it the same way.

JEFF JESSE, executive director of AK Mental Health Trust
Authority, said he would start by discussing the concept of
entitlement. He rem nded nenbers that they were talking about
peopl e that health professionals have identified as a danger to
thensel ves or others. These aren't people the State can avoid
dealing with altogether. There's a lot of talk about which
services are essential and intervention for these people has to
be at the top of the list. This is a public safety issue, a
health issue, and often a life and death issue. "The question
isn't really the entitlenent; we have to serve these people. The
guestion is how are we going to do it."

A nunber of years ago a policy decision was nmade. There's been a
progression from sendi ng everyone to Mirningside to sending them
all to APl and now people are treated on a |ocal/regional basis
as much as possible. Now only the people that need the |ongest-
termtreatnment end up at APlI. "That's why we elected to build an

SENATE HES COW TTEE -22- March 24, 2004



APl that's snaller than the one we have today and it's dependant
upon this designated evaluation treatnent system that we're
still in the process of building around the state.” Building a
54 bed APl facility was predicated on the assunption that 18
beds of evaluation and treatnment would be built in Anchorage.
That is still in process, he said.

He said they don't take issue with the cost estimate and they
agree that the program needs to be managed nore closely.
However, he urged nenbers to focus on the real problem of fixing
the rate.

In summary he said,

The bill gives the departnent managenent tools and
they would agree wth those - time frames,
applications, approval - that sort of thing. In ny
view, if you then also say, 'But you only have to
manage this program until you run out of noney.' you
basically take away any incentive to nanage. They can
sit back, spend the noney and when the nobney's gone,
everybody else goes to API. | think you're better off
telling them that if you have a cost overrun you're
going to have to be accountable to the Legislature in
a supplenmental. You need to manage this program we'll|
give you the tools to manage it, we'll give you the
tools to set the rates where they need to be, but we
need to be able to provide the service in the
comuni ties where these people cone from

CHAIR DYSON said he thinks they agree and he and Senator Quess
tried to get on the record stating that people will get services
and facilities will get paid.

SENATOR GREEN noted she found several other references to
appropriations [AS 47.30.655] and it sounds as though it's being
applied to an additional section instead of it being a new
concept. She asked if that's correct.

MR. JESSE agreed, but nade the point that introducing that kind
of uncertainty into the financing plan is the kiss of death. He
said, "One of the things I've learned in working with the Denal

Comm ssion is business plans are gold and if you set up a system
where a facility cannot count on what the financing systemis,
not only will you jeopardize the current providers who provide
service, but you can forget any expansion into Anchorage, Mat Su
or any other part of the state because no reasonable provider

SENATE HES COW TTEE -23- March 24, 2004



would get into a business where their reinbursenment is so
subject to the unpredictable mnagenent policies of the
departnent.”

CHAI R DYSON added or the nunber or people that are served.
SENATOR GREEN asked if he would get back to the conmttee on the
guestion that relates to the 100 percent of hospital cost

i ncrease between FY 01 and FY 03.

CHAI R DYSON stated that he would |ike to apol ogize for using the
term"nutty"” in a previous discussion about nental health.

Directing his comments to those who had testified, he urged them
to get together wth the commttee nenbers to make sure their
concerns were addressed.

CHAI R DYSON held SB 364 in commttee.

HB 25- HEALTH CARE SERVI CES DI RECTI VES

The conmittee took up CSHB 25(JUD).

SENATOR LYDA GREEN noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
version V [labeled 23-LS0137\V, Bannister, 3/24/04] as the
wor king docunment before the committee. [ There being no
objection, it was treated as adopted.]

CHAIR DYSON said that after Ms. Sylvester’s testinony, he would
run through a list of issues still being addressed that woul d be
i ncluded in the next version of HB 25.

IVB. LI NDA  SYLVESTER, staff to Representative Wyhrauch,
explained that version V was the result of a 3/8/04 staff
meeting that included the |ieutenant governor’s chief of staff,
and Chip Wagoner fromthe Al aska Catholic Conference (ACC). The
docunent they settled on had approxinmately 66 anendnents; she
said she would summarize the inportant ones. She began by
stating that “emancipated mnors” had been elimnated from HB
25. Changes were made to the role of a surrogate (noting that
surrogates are a new part of HB 25) and the role of physicians
was anplified in the decision-making process, when surrogates
are evenly split.

CHAIR DYSON offered that this serves to bring the “best
interest” of the patient into the conversation.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 24, 2004



IVS. SYLVESTER continued that regarding surrogates, t he
prom nence of best interest was increased. The intention is to
include a definition of best interest in the form although it
has not [yet] been i ncluded. She said the new |anguage that
anplifies the physician’s role in detecting...

TAPE 04-15, SIDE A

M5. SYLVESTER continued, “... that’'s cone forward or that’s been
nom nat ed, isn't necessarily an appropriate one. The
protections are in place. The physician has standing already to
reconmmend this to go to guardianship procedures, but we just
want to put that in there, so we want to direct the physician to
take a nore proactive role in that situation.”

MS. SYLVESTER told nenbers that nost inportantly there are new
guidelines for surrogate decision-nmaking when the decision
i nvol ves withdrawal of |ife support. “We’ ve used | anguage from
the Illinois statute. These are strict guidelines; our concern
was we wanted to nake sure if there was a 35-year old who was in
a notorcycle accident and he was going to recover from his
injuries but the spouse took the opportunity to push forward
wi shes of not being resuscitated, we wanted to nmake sure that
this wouldn’t happen.”

CHAIR DYSON interjected, “a big estate, and she’'s got a
boyfriend.”

MS. SYLVESTER continued that regarding anatom cal gifts, updates
were nmade so that the role of the hospital was taken out
sonewhat, because Life Alaska has stepped into that role. V5.
Syl vester referenced Section 4 of the 1987 Uniform Anatom cal
G ft Act, and noted that changes had been made to verify that
Al aska is not an opt-out state. |If ever that were to change, a
bill would need to come through the Legislature; it would be a
policy decision of its own.

MS. SYLVESTER said portability was of concern; it’s inportant
that all advance directives outside of Alaska are recognized to
the extent that Alaska law is not violated. The committee
reviewed those Sections and regarding the “do not resuscitate
(DNR)” order, one nore clarification needs to be nmade so that
it’s perfectly clear that EMIs in the field who are sure there’'s
a DNR in place can act in good faith. She gave the anal ogy of
sonebody obtaining a driver’s license in Mintana where the speed
limt is 75 nph; although that license is valid in Alaska, that
person can’t drive at 75 nph.

SENATE HES COW TTEE -25- March 24, 2004



MS. SYLVESTER said that sone changes were nmade to the [optional]
form itself. A hel pful rem nder was added indicating that
eut hanasia and nercy killing is not legal in Alaska. A change
was nade to the pain relief option so that space in the formis
given for the principal to state his/her w shes regarding pain
relief. Also, the intent is to add sone critical definitions to

the form but the drafter mssed those. Wtness requirenents
were nodi fied sonewhat; “w tnesses need to be in place and there
are criteria for who the w tnesses can be because that wll be

the protection that foul play isn't a part of this.”

MS5. SYLVESTER said that interestingly enough, H PAA [Health
I nsurance Portability and Accountability] concerns were raised
and have been addressed in two places: in the institution's
immunity for providing nedical records, to nake sure that
surrogates and agents have access to those records; also,
hospitals sonetinmes cannot give nedical records to individuals
because of not knowing if the principal has |ost capacity — it’s
a | oop because the person needs to see the records - so that’s
been fixed, she said.

MS. SYLVESTER said the commttee was mndful of the policy
considerations; there were six, and the bulk of them have been

addr essed. Language has been added so that there is a
presunption in favor of life in the absence of soneone’s stated
intent that they presune to be kept alive. The role of the
surrogate and the agent has been clarified regarding life
support. Reci procity has been addressed, although it still
needs sone work. The question, “At what point does the

definition of a ‘qualified patient’ kick in?” has been addressed
by stipulating the conditions necessary for a surrogate to nake
decisions relative to life support. “Anatom cal gifts” has been
clarified and corrected. She noted that she couldn’'t read her
notes on the | ast one, nunber six.

CHAI R DYSON said excellent work has been done on the bill, and
he understands that there is still work being done on the issue
of nutrition and hydration to nore clearly differentiate between
persons who are wunarguably termnal and those who are just
i njured, maybe incapacitated or comatose. There may be a little

nore work to do regarding surrogates, as there is still the
question of I|imting the authority of the decision-nakers and
strengthening the best interest of the patient. Also, there is
the issue of reciprocity. There are ongoing discussions on

those three itens, he said.

SENATE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 24, 2004



DR. MARI A WALLINGTON, a nedical ethicist at Providence Al aska
Medi cal Center, said she could be available at the bill’s next
hearing, that she was avail able to answer questions.

CHAI R DYSON asked if she had a copy of the |atest version.

DR. WALLI NGTON said she has not seen it, but she conversed wth
Ms. Sylvester about it.

CHAIR DYSON suggested that she contact his office or
Representative Weyhrauch to get a copy. He announced there were
copies available for those wanting to see the |atest version of
the bill.

SENATOR GUESS noted concern about the intended tineline and
asked if there would be sufficient tine to ask questions
pertaining to the different versions.

CHAI R DYSON assured her that there would be tine for questions,
saying, “Wre not going to railroad this thing, it’s too
val uabl e and too sweeping.” HB 25 was held in commttee.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the neeting at 3:28 p.m

SENATE HES COW TTEE -27- March 24, 2004



